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ALABAMA 9-1-1 BOARD MEETING
1 Commerce Street
Montgomery, Alabama
Minutes of 11/19/2025

Prior notice of this regularly scheduled meeting of the Alabama 9-1-1 Board was given in
accordance with the Alabama Open Meetings Act. The minutes were recorded by Ms. Michelle
Peel, Program Coordinator for the Board.

Mr. Brandon Wallace, Chair for the Board, called the public hearing to order at 9:00 a.m.

The roll was called as follows by Ms. Peel:

Brandon Broadhead, Secretary/Treasurer K Present CJAbsent (IVirtual
Evelyn Causey XPresent [JAbsent [IVirtual
John Nettles [(OPresent XAbsent [1Virtual
Shawn Rogers, Vice Chair KPresent CJAbsent OOVirtual
Rich Schreiber XPresent (JAbsent (IVirtual
Kristi Stamnes CJPresent X Absent (IVirtual
Brandon Wallace, Chair XPresent CJAbsent [IVirtual
Tim Webb XPresent CJAbsent [IVirtual
Jeremy Williams OPresent XAbsent [JVirtual
Marlon Williamson XPresent LJAbsent [1Virtual

Mr. Brandon Wallace called for approval of the public hearing agenda. Mr. Brandon Broadhead
made the motion to approve the agenda. Mr. Rich Schreiber seconded the motion. Motion
passed with no objections. Mr. John Nettles joined the meeting at 9:03 a.m. Mr. Brandon
Wallace turned the meeting over to Ms. Leah Missildine, Executive Director of the Board, to
begin the public hearing on the rule amendments.

A Public Hearing was held for:
e Rule 595-X-4-.09
e Rule 585-X-5-.02

Ms. Kristi Stamnes joined the meeting at 9:06 a.m.
The Public Hearing was concluded at 9:17 a.m. The transcript of the public hearing is attached to

these minutes.

Mr. Brandon Wallace, Chair, called the Board meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. The roll was called
as follows by Ms. Peel:
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Brandon Broadhead, Secretary/Treasurer X Present [CJAbsent (1Virtual
Evelyn Causey XPresent L1Absent [IVirtual
John Nettles XPresent (1Absent (1Virtual
Shawn Rogers, Vice Chair K Present C1Absent C1Virtual
Rich Schreiber XPresent C1Absent (1Virtual
Kristi Stamnes CPresent CJAbsent X Virtual
Brandon Wallace, Chair K Present CJAbsent C1Virtual
Tim Webb XPresent C1Absent C1Virtual
Jeremy Williams XPresent L1Absent [1Virtual
Marlon Williamson XPresent (JAbsent [1Virtual

He called for approval of the agenda. Ms. Evelyn Causey made the motion to approve the
agenda. Mr. Rich Schreiber seconded the motion. A roll call vote was taken by Ms. Peel.

Brandon Broadhead Yay O Nay [0 Abstain
Evelyn Causey Yay [0 Nay [ Abstain
John Nettles Yay [ Nay [ Abstain
Shawn Rogers Yay O Nay [ Abstain
Rich Schreiber Yay [0 Nay [ Abstain
Kristi Stamnes Yay [ Nay [ Abstain
Brandon Wallace Yay O Nay [ Abstain
Tim Webb Yay O Nay [ Abstain
Marlon Williamson Yay [ Nay [ Abstain

There were no objections. The motion passed unanimously. Mr. Wallace then called for approval
of the minutes of the September 17, 2025 Board Meeting. Mr. Rich Schreiber asked that the
minutes be changed to show that he left the meeting at 12:54 p.m. Mr. Brandon Broadhead made
the motion to approve the minutes with the change suggested by Mr. Schreiber. Mr. Shawn
Rogers seconded it. A roll call vote was taken by Ms. Peel.

Brandon Broadhead Yay 0O Nay [ Abstain
Evelyn Causey Yay [ Nay [ Abstain
John Nettles Yay O Nay [ Abstain
Shawn Rogers Yay [ Nay [ Abstain
Rich Schreiber Yay O Nay [ Abstain
Kristi Stamnes Yay O Nay [ Abstain
Brandon Wallace Yay O Nay [ Abstain
Tim Webb Yay [ Nay [ Abstain
Marlon Williamson Yay O Nay 0O Abstain

There were no objections, and the motion passed unanimously. Guest introductions were made.
Ms. Leah Missildine, Executive Director for the Board, introduced the Board’s newest employee,
Arjun Brar.
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Ms. Missildine continued the meeting with the Programmatic Reports. Ms. Missildine started
with the finance report. She presented the financials for the twelve months ending September 30,
2025. Ms. Missildine recommended to the Board that they accept the financial statements as
presented in the Board packet for September 2025. Mr. Tim Webb made the motion. Mr. Marlon

Williamson seconded the motion. A roll call vote was taken by Ms. Peel.

Brandon Broadhead
Evelyn Causey
John Nettles

Shawn Rogers

Rich Schreiber
Kristi Stamnes
Brandon Wallace
Tim Webb

Marlon Williamson

Motion passed with no objections.

Yay [ Nay
Yay O Nay
Yay O Nay
Yay [ Nay
Yay [ Nay
Yay [ Nay
Yay [ Nay
Yay [ Nay
Yay O Nay

[] Abstain
[J Abstain
[J Abstain
[1 Abstain
[] Abstain
[ Abstain
[ Abstain
[J Abstain
[J Abstain

Ms. Missildine presented the October 2025 financials. She reviewed a new format that would
help the financial statements be easier for parties unfamiliar with the process to understand. She
recommended to the Board they accept the October 2025 financials as presented in the new
format. Mr. Shawn Rogers made the motion. Mr. Rich Schreiber seconded the motion. A roll

call vote was taken by Ms. Peel:

Brandon Broadhead
Evelyn Causey
John Nettles

Shawn Rogers

Rich Schreiber
Kristi Stamnes
Brandon Wallace
Tim Webb

Marlon Williamson

Yay [ Nay
Yay 0O Nay
Yay [ Nay
Yay LI Nay
Yay [ Nay
Yay [ Nay
Yay [J Nay
Yay O Nay
Yay O Nay

] Abstain
[ Abstain
[J Abstain
] Abstain
] Abstain
[ Abstain
] Abstain
[J Abstain
] Abstain

Ms. Missildine moved on to baseline funding to the Districts. She explained the difference
between the October 2025 distribution and the November 2025 distribution. There was a
shortfall in November — revenues were below what’s needed without making up the difference
from Carrier & ECDs Services fund to make Districts whole to their baseline. By statutory
obligation, if revenues are below a certain amount in any given month after October 1, 2025
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money will have to be taken from another of the Board’s accounts, if funds are available, to
make up the shortfall. The shortfall in November was taken from the Carrier and ECD Services
account. She explained that in the past, the transfers of money were done at the end of the month.
Now, transfers will be made at the beginning of the month for the 1% and 20% and if there is a
shortfall for the distribution, the money will be transferred back to cover it.

Ms. Missildine continued with an update on past grant cycles. She explained that all the work on
grants is completed by Mr. Adam Brown, Deputy Director. She reported all projects in Grant
Cycle 7 and 8 are complete. She stated that the projects in Grant Cycle 9 will take an extended
period to close out because of the way the grant award was structured. She explained that the
monies for Grant Cycle 10 were paid at the end of October. There should be an update on Grant
Cycle 10 at the next Board meeting.

Mr. Adam Brown, Deputy Director for the Board, then provided an update on the Legacy 9-1-1
Cost Reimbursement Program. He stated that the last opportunity to submit for reimbursement
for fiscal year 2025 is December 10, 2025. He outlined the ongoing discussions with Brightspeed
to solve billing problems.

Ms. Missildine moved on FY26 Cost Recovery. All carriers have filed their FY26 plans and
closed out their FY25 requests for payments. She stated that $217,505.91 was unclaimed during
FY25. She recommended the Board accept the FY26 plans as submitted by Pinebelt and
SouthernLinc. Mr. Brandon Broadhead made the motion. Mr. Marlon Williamson seconded the
motion. A roll call vote was taken by Ms. Peel.

Brandon Broadhead Yay OO Nay [ Abstain
Evelyn Causey Yay [ Nay [ Abstain
John Nettles Yay [ Nay [ Abstain
Shawn Rogers Yay [ Nay [ Abstain
Rich Schreiber Yay 0O Nay [ Abstain
Kristi Stamnes Yay [ Nay O Abstain
Brandon Wallace Yay [ Nay [J Abstain
Tim Webb Yay 0 Nay [ Abstain
Marlon Williamson Yay [ Nay [ Abstain

Motion passed with no objections.

Ms. Missildine continued with the FY25 Unclaimed Cost Recovery Declaration and interest
income distribution. As stated, the unclaimed cost recovery is $217,505.91. The interest income
is $114,201.17. She recommended that the Board distribute the total of the unclaimed cost
recovery and interest income by population. Mr. Brandon Broadhead made the motion to
distribute $331,707.08 by population. Mr. Rich Schreiber second the motion. A roll call vote was
taken by Ms. Peel.

Brandon Broadhead Yay O Nay O Abstain
Evelyn Causey Yay [0 Nay [0 Abstain
John Nettles Yay [ Nay 0O Abstain
Minutes of 11/19/2025
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Shawn Rogers Yay O Nay [ Abstain
Rich Schreiber Yay O Nay O Abstain
Kristi Stamnes Yay O Nay [ Abstain
Brandon Wallace Yay O Nay O Abstain
Tim Webb Yay O Nay [ Abstain
Marlon Williamson Yay O Nay [ Abstain

Motion passed with no objections. Ms. Missildine highlighted the Consumer Price Index. It is
halfway through the five-year look back period. It is currently at 9%. She presented a potential
timeline for the 2028 increase.

Education and Outreach Report

Ms. Missildine then turned the meeting over to Ms. Laura Ehrhart, Certification and Training
Manager for the Board. Ms. Ehrhart began her report with a discussion of PST certification
compliance. She reported that this is done at the first of each month. She said that when these
letters are received by the ECD, non-compliance is solved quickly.

Ms. Ehrhart continued her report with an update on training that the Board has offered in the
previous months; a total of 638 CEUs earned from in-person training provided by the Board and
1,296 CEUs on Virtual Academy.

Ms. Ehrhart updated the Board on the release of the new version of the Alabama Emergency
Medical Dispatch program. She highlighted the first course at the EMS conference in Orange
Beach earlier in November.

Mr. Jeremy Williams joined the meeting virtually at 10:52 a.m.

Technology Report

Ms. Melissa Carpenter provided the report for INdigital. She started with an update on the Host
3 Vesta migration. She continued with several call statistics for the last two months. She reported
support tickets and special events. She concluded her report with a review of the projects in
Alabama.

Mr. Anderson Brooms then presented the GIS report. He first talked about the PSAPs he visited
in the two months prior to the meeting. He provided an update on the RapidSOS
implementation. He discussed the importance of data recency in the Board’s VEP and the status
of each District’s time since their last refresh. He reported on the status by ECD of the statewide
GIS data remediation project, MSAG to RCL, ALI to RCL, and ALI to AP. He concluded with a
map showing the availability of VEP training. 74 of Alabama’s 106 PSAPs were within one hour
of a VEP training in 2025.
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Governance Report

Ms. Missildine moved on to the Governance Report. She provided a recap of the rule
amendments discussed during the public hearing. Rule 585-X-4-.09 was the first one presented.
Mr. Shawn Rogers made the motion to adopt Rule 585-X-4-.09 as proposed. Mr. Brandon
Broadhead seconded the motion. Motion passed with no objections.

Ms. Missildine continued with administrative Rule 585-X-5-.02. Mr. Shawn Rogers made the
motion to adopt Rule 585-X-5-.02 as proposed. Ms. Evelyn Causey seconded the motion. Motion
passed with no objections.

Old Business

Ms. Missildine reminded the Board about the new area code being implemented in the
geographical area currently assigned the 334 area code. Both area codes will be used and after
the first of the year the area code will be required for dialing all calls. Also, the Board will hold
quarterly meetings in 2026. She outlined the planned schedule for those open meetings.

New Business

Ms. Missildine explained to the Board an extension request filed by Verizon to extend the
deadline for delivering 911 traffic in SIP format. She will approve their request and others that
are within certain parameters.

She explained that the Archives Department has contacted the Board to review the Records
Disposition Authority. Staff will be moving forward with that process. She then outlined a letter
that will be sent to the AAND President for timely appointment of Board members.

Mr. Brandon Wallace called for a five-minute break at 11:43 a.m. The meeting was called back
to order at 11:48 a.m.

Ms. Missildine moved on to the transition plan for the Executive Director position over the next
12-16 months.

Mr. Brandon Broadhead returned to the meeting at 11:49 a.m.

Ms. Missildine discussed the transition plan through the end of 2026. She outlined each step and
the timeline associated with each step. There was discussion about needs for continuity of
operations during Ms. Missildine’s PTO in December and January. Ms. Evelyn Causey made
the motion to designate the deputy director as interim executive director with all associated
duties, responsibilities, and authorities during the absence of the executive director without
limitation from December 26, 2025 until the anticipated return on January 20, 2026 to include
without limitations all banking authorities therewith. Mr. Marlon Williamson seconded the
motion. There was no discussion. A roll call vote was taken by Ms. Peel:
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Brandon Broadhead
Evelyn Causey
John Nettles

Shawn Rogers

Rich Schreiber
Kristi Stamnes
Brandon Wallace
Tim Webb

Jeremy Williams
Marlon Williamson

Motion passed with no objections.

Yay [ Nay
Yay [ Nay
Yay [ Nay
Yay [ Nay
Yay [ Nay
Yay [ Nay
Yay O Nay
Yay [ Nay
Yay O Nay
Yay O Nay

[J Abstain
[ Abstain
1 Abstain
[ Abstain
[J Abstain
L] Abstain
] Abstain
] Abstain
] Abstain
] Abstain
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Mr. Brandon Broadhead made a motion to approve the executive director transition plan as
presented to include the updated executive director’s job description subject to the following:

A. The deputy director shall serve as interim executive director during any absences of the
executive director with all associated authorities and duties to include banking; and,

B. The Board will address the advisory position approval in the February 2026 meeting to
include the job description and actual hiring.

Mr. Tim Webb seconded the motion. There was no discussion. A roll call vote was taken by Ms.

Peel:

Brandon Broadhead
Evelyn Causey
John Nettles

Shawn Rogers

Rich Schreiber
Kristi Stamnes
Brandon Wallace
Tim Webb

Jeremy Williams
Marlon Williamson

Motion passed with no objections.

Yay [ Nay
Yay [ Nay
Yay O Nay
Yay O Nay
Yay O Nay
Yay [ Nay
Yay O Nay
Yay [ Nay
Yay [ Nay
Yay [ Nay

[J Abstain
[J Abstain
] Abstain
[J Abstain
1 Abstain
[J Abstain
[J Abstain
(] Abstain
[ Abstain
[ Abstain

Mr. Marlon Williamson asked general counsel if the motion was specific to this situation or
whether it would allow the deputy director to perform the duties of the executive director any
time going forward. Mr. Barnett replied that this motion only covers this specific situation and
that the Board will need to enact policies to ensure continuity of operations going forward.

Public Comments:

Minutes of 11/19/2025
Page 7 of 8



Q

ALABAMA O] BOARD

There were no public comments.

Adjournment

Meeting adjourned at 12:19 p.m.

Approved this 18th day of February, 2026.

J%WJ &_/ Secretaa | Treaswrer

Signature / Title |
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MR. WALLACE: Wl cone, everyone.

| would like to call the public hearing to

order. Can we get a roll call and vote,
Ms. M chelle?

M5. PEEL: Certainly. Brandon
Br oadhead?

MR, BROADHEAD. Here.

M5. PEEL: Evelyn Causey?

MS. CAUSEY: Here.

M5. PEEL: John Nettles?

(No response.)

M5. PEEL: Shawn Rogers?

MR ROGERS: Here.

M5. PEEL: Rich Schreiber?

MR, SCHREI BER: Here.

M5. PEEL: Kristi Stames?

(No response.)

M5. PEEL: Brandon Wall ace?

MR. WALLACE: Here.

M5. PEEL: Ti m Wbb?

MR. VEEBB: Here.

M5. PEEL: Jereny WIIlians?

(No response.)

V5. PEEL:

Marl on WIIlianson?

MR, WLLI AMSON: Here.
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MR. WALLACE: Wth that, can we
get a notion to approve the public hearing
agenda?

BROADHEAD: So noved.
SCHREI BER:  Second.

M SSILDINE: Al right.
WALLACE: W need, all in

25 33

favor.
(Col I ective aye.)
MR. WALLACE: Any opposed?
(No response.)

MR WALLACE: Okay.

M5. MSSILDINE: Al right. W
will go ahead and get started on the two
proposed rul e anendnents that we have fil ed
with LSA back in the nonth of Septenber,
right, published at the end of that nonth
that you all saw a previous version of. |
did not print this twce for your board
packet, so the version is in the governance
section -- the governance tab of your board
packets so that when we take actual action
on this during the board neeting, you have
it infront of you. And that should be tab

eight | believe in your packet.
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But as has been the case since
January of this year, 2025, Adm nistrative
Rul e 585-X-4-.09, the rule that remained in
effect after last year's anendnent based on
t he Sunset review report, we kept the first
and | ast paragraph of the rule know ng that
we were going to need to cone back and add
back a m ddle portion should there be
| egi sl ative change. So this, that you have
before you, is the version that is in
effect currently and what we've added back
-- and | apologize. There's just really no
good way to show this type of fornmatted
docunent, in ny opinion. So these are just
JPEGs of what's actually published in the
adm nistrative nonthly.

But the bl ue underscored verbiage
Is verbiage that is being added to the
rule. So we left the first paragraph that
was in there, and then we tal k about the
purpose of the rule and its -- establishes
the authorized uses of the separate account
funded by the statew de 911 charge remtted
to the Al abama 911 Board, specifically for

carrier and Enmergency Conmuni cati on

2 ESQUIRE

800.211.DEPO (3376)

DEROSITION SOLUTIONS EsquireSolutions.com



© 00 N o o B~ W DN PP

N DD D N NDMNDN P P P PP PP PR R
a b W N B O © 0 N OO0 O M WO N B O

HEARING
TRANSCRIPT OF HEARING

November 19, 2025

6

District services. So this is what we have
often referred to as the cost recovery
rule. So we're going back to make certain
that this rule mmcs what is in the actual
statute that took effect Cctober 1 of this
year.

So we discuss the primary use of
the funds, how those wll be used, and then
al so the secondary use of the funds, and
then we fulfill the requirenment in the
statute to establish the maxi mum al | owabl e
bal ance to be carried over fromyear to
year. So -- sorry, |I'mhaving a technical
I ssue. R ght hand's not knowi ng what the
| eft hand's doing, and it's all ny fault.

Al so, we have proposed Rul e
Amendment 585- X-5-.02-8, which pertains to,
again -- the need for this rule pertains to
us having passed a penalty portion of our
PST certification rule that upon
exam nation, we don't have the authority to
wi t hhold nmonthly -- any portion of the
monthly distribution. So | cannot control
the format of this. Their site does this.

So with all the strikethroughs, what the

2 ESQUIRE

800.211.DEPO (3376)
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one sentence is supposed to say is what's
in the black text in the gray box there in
front of you.

|, again -- whenever you submt
your online verbiage, it strikes through
what it wants to, which is very difficult
to read, but basically it takes out the
penalty box and table, the 25 -- or the 3
nmonth, 6 nonth, 9 nonth, 12 nonth, in the
25, 50, 75 progression of w thholding their
di stribution and replaces it with the
statenent: Upon notice of nonconpliance,
the District's failure to return to
conpliance will result in sone of the
District's funding eligibility being
forfeited.

So it just shortens or condenses
the penalty section of that rule to give
the Board nore | eeway in what penalties my
be assessed to a nonconpliant ECD in the
future. So I think until we get sone sort
of clarification either in the law or from
the exam ners or with an AG s opi nion or
what ever we decide to do in the future,

this is just a tenporary, you nmay forfeit
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sone of your funding if you're
nonconpliant. At this point, we have had
an ECD or a handful or l|ess that have

remai ned nonconpliant over 30, 60, 90 days,
but what we are seeing typically, are nost
ECDs, once notified, they are brought back
into conpliance pretty quickly. But that's
been reported to you all in every other
nonth's board neeting this past year, so
that's sonething for us to consider, but we
al so see that nonconpliance is renedied
pretty quickly by nost.

So, we can nove on to the witten
comrents portion which is in your board
packet. | printed those at 4:30, Mbnday.
We have not had any others submtted.

There are three that we had submtted; two
were in support of our proposed changes for
both rules; one did kind of request that we
-- what we are -- what we have proposed nmay
be too vague. They want it to be nore
specific. | do believe that is to cone,

but that is obviously a topic for

di scussion if you all want to discuss that.

So I'll give you a nonent to read the
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witten comments if you have not already.
It's just those three m ddl e paragraphs on
each of those forns. Mchelle, have we --
have you been provided a witten copy of
the --

THE COURT REPORTER (Nods head.)

M5. M SSILDI NE: Okay. Because
they'|ll be part of (inaudible). Any
guestions about the witten comments before
we open it to public or verbal coments in
t he roonf

(No response.)

MR. ROGERS. Fromreading the
first one from Coffee, the way | read that
is they see what's there --

M5. M SSILDI NE: Yes.

MR ROGERS: -- and they see it
struck fromand renoved and then that one
statenent being -- or that one change being
put in. | don't know that they're
under standi ng that the | aw says that we
can't withhold the base distribution
anount .

M5. MSSILDINE: | tend to agree

wi th you.

2 ESQUIRE
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MR. ROGERS:. This pertains to any
additional funding that -- so that's what |
gat hered fromthat one.

M5. MSSILDINE: And we can do a
little bit of education based on what the
outcone of today is, we can nake certain
that that's understood by the author of
those witten comments just to make sure
t hat they under st and.

MR. BROADHEAD: So there was a
question a little bit back about penalty
versus w thhol ding. He |aughed because |I'm
still confused as could be. Do we have the
right to penalize w thout w thhol ding? So
basically you could fine thembut not -- it
just seens stupid to ne.

M5. MSSILDINE: | still do not
have a witten answer on that and I'm
trying to --

MR. BROADHEAD: What's the | egal
clarification?

MR, BARNETT: Well, the | egal
clarification based upon the law that's in
pl ace was that's what the prior |anguage

was based on, a very specific (inaudible)

2 ESQUIRE
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request for specificity back then. Since
that tinme -- and that's froma plain
reading of the statute, w thout any
addi tional guidance fromthe |egislature.
O hers have taken a different approach from
a legal interpretation, and so that's where
we find ourselves. That's why the
resulting | anguage of sone has cone into
pl ay because therein |ies the question from
a | egal perspective, what does the word
penalty nean? Well, we know what it neans.
But the willingness of others to interpret
that that way, is not there. And so they
will arguably hammer if you will to be
honest with you.

And so there's a difference of
| egal opinion. W have ours here, but
others -- exam ners and Sunset -- say, wait
a second. So I'mstill of the opinion that
penalty nmeans penalty. And that's the
phrase in the statute, right?

M5. M SSILDINE: Rules of
enforcenent and that -- yes, for penalty.

MR. BARNETT: | believe that the

penalty word is in the statute and so,
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there you go. So we can inpose the rules

but --

MR. BROADHEAD: | guess |'mjust
joining his confusion because as |'m
reading this fromM. Brown here, | nean, |
can understand why he has hesitation. |It's
SO vague.

MR. BARNETT: Yeah, because the
word sone is extrenely vague. But what do
you do? Because you previously had a very
specific, very reginented, progressive-type
enforcenent. It wasn't hugely punitive.

It was just graduated, and so we thought
that that was -- a couple years back, we
t hought that that was a good way to
approach it given the statute and the

| anguage.

MR. BROADHEAD: | guess ny point
iIsis, howare we going to clarify
sonething that we don't fully understand?

MR, ROGERS. | don't think we
are. | think we're going to have to wait

MR. BARNETT: It's going to be a

case- by-case basis, and I will follow the
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director's statenent by saying it's going
to have to be through higher authority,
| egi sl ative, attorney general or sonebody
like that to define a nore specific reading
of it. Again, we have our opinion, but
we're going to need sonebody with nore
clout to add sone clarity to the situation.
MR. ROGERS: So at the |ast board
neeting, correct ne if I'mwong, but we
were review ng the statute, there's -- the
first part of that statute says that the
base distribution anmount -- and |'m putting
that in a nutshell -- but the base
di stri bution anount shall be or must be
distributed to the districts which -- we
must distribute that to the districts. |

think the penalty -- and this is ny belief.

| think the penalty conmes -- if we choose
to do that -- after that distribution is
made.
M5. MSSILDI NE: | would agree.
MR. ROCERS: | think there's also

an ineligibility for applying for grant
funds and ot her things that we provide

out side the base distribution anpunt. But
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the statute says that we nust --

M5. M SSILDI NE: W shall.

MR ROGERS. -- and not we nay.
But we shall distribute the base anount to
the districts. So | think that's where the
hang-up was, was we were saying that we
were going to withhold those percentages if
t here was nonconpliance. The |aw says we
shall distribute. 1 think the enforcenent
part of it or the penalty part cones after
that. So we're not nessing wth the base
di stribution amount. W're saying if they
don't conply with this -- if they don't
conply, then their eligibility for grants
coul d be suspended or revoked or taken away
or what ever because of nonconpli ance.

M5. M SSILDI NE: And worst-case
scenario, | think maybe if we can't, in
witing, get guidance from soneone el se --
really the Departnent of Exam ners of
Public Accounts -- we at |east adopt, as a
board, a policy to capture what those
penalties may be -- or ineligibilities may
be.

MR. BROADHEAD: So the vagueness
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here though, does that handicap the staff
in not allow ng themthose things unless we
cone to a vote? So should we add sonet hi ng
that basically said, you wll not be
eligible for additional funding unless
overturned by the Board or sonething |ike

t hat ?

M5. MSSILDINE: | think that's
what a policy would capture. That way we
could act without having to conme to you or
havi ng to have a vote.

MR. BROADHEAD:. Basically anot her
four tines a year when the Board --

M5. M SSILDI NE: R ght.

MR. BARNETT: Right this m nute,
what you said's accurate, but the policy
that she's speaking of would allow sone
flexibility for staff to inplenment whatever
policy you put in place.

M5. MSSILDINE: |'Il continue to

try to capture sone witten gui dance and

comentary. |I'mjust trying to think as
far as policy wise, we'll author a draft
policy, and then we will |ikely have to

I ncorporate sone of that into our other
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rul es because |like our grant program that
is arule. That process is outlined in the
admnistrative rules. So it'll just be --
| mean, we're going to perpetuate being in
the adm nistrative rul e-maki ng process. W

can't help it --

MR BROW: | wll say --

M5. MSSILDINE: -- so that's
fine.

MR BROWN: -- | think we're

covered there with our |ast changes that
are in the rules because there is sone
other duties that's assigned to clauses in
there about ineligibility.

MR. BROADHEAD:. W approved grant
rules on the grants anyway so you woul dn't
have to conme to us --

MR BROMN: Correct.

MR. BROADHEAD: -- what |'m
worried about is, |like, |egacy and things
that we've al ready done, you not being able
to hold it on your own and having to wait
two weeks to cone back to us or four nonths
for sonebody that's --

M5. MSSILD NE: Well, we'll get
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that renedi ed next board neeting. W'll
try to think of every avenue --

MR. BROADHEAD: Good | uck.

M5. M SSILDINE: Cover it all.

MR. BROAN: Maybe we'll get sone
foll owmup fromthe questions that we have as
wel | .

M5. MSSILD NE: Okay. Do we
have anybody that would like to publicly
comrent on the rule -- the suggested rule
changes?

(No response.)

M5. M SSILDI NE: Okay.

MR, BARNETT: And just for the
mass, this is a hearing for both
si mul t aneousl y.

M5. M SSILDI NE:  Yes.

MR. WALLACE: Anynore discussion?
Do we need a notion to adjourn fromthe
publ i c hearing?

M5. MSSILDI NE: W do. And then
the action for you all wll be during the
board neeting, but that you will adopt the
final |anguage for us to certify to LSA,

and we wll file that before -- |I'll go
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over the calendar again. W wll file that
bef ore Decenber 4th | think. It's a
single-digit day in Decenber, and then that
w |l take effect in January.
MR. WALLACE: Okay. Do I have a
notion to adjourn fromthe public hearing?
MR. SCHREI BER: So noved.
MR. BROADHEAD: Second.
MR. WALLACE: Al in favor?
(Col l ective aye.)
MR. WALLACE: Any opposed?
(No response.)
MR WALLACE: W are adjourned
fromthe public hearing.
(Meeting was adjourned at 9:17
a.m on Novenber 19, 2025.)
--000- -
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CERTI FI CATE
State of Al abama
El nrore County
|, Madi son Borden, do hereby
certify that | recorded, by neans of
stenotype, the foregoing proceedings at the
time and place stated in the caption
hereof, that the foregoing represents a
full, true, and correct transcript of the
proceedi ngs on sai d occasi on.
| further certify that | am
nei t her of counsel nor of kin to any
parties, nor interested in the outcone of
thi s case.
| further certify that | ama
duly l'icensed Court Reporter, as displayed
by ny |icense nunber bel ow, by the Al abama
Board of Court Reporti ng.
So certified on Novenber 20, 2025.

/ s/ Madi son Bor den
MADI SON BORDEN, CCR
CCR#687, Expires 9/ 30/ 26
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TRANSMITTAL SHEET FOR NOTICE
OF INTENDED ACTION

Control: 585
Department or Agency: Alabama Statewide Nine-One-One Board
Rule No.: 585-X-4-.09

Additional Distributions To Emergency Communication

Rule Title: Districts From The Cost Recovery Fund

Intended Action Amend

Would the absence of the proposed rule significantly harm or

. Yes
endanger the public health, welfare, or safety?
Is there a reasonable relationship between the state’s police No
power and the protection of the public health, safety, or welfare?
Is there another, less restrictive method of regulation available No
that could adequately protect the public?
Does the proposed rule have the effect of directly or indirectly Mo
increasing the costs of any gocods or services involved?
To what degree?: N/A
Is the increase in cost more harmful to the public than the harm NA

that might result from the absence of the proposed rule?

Are all facets of the rule-making process designed solely for the
purpose of, and so they have, as their primary effect, the Yes
protection of the public?

Does the proposed action relate to or affect in any manner any
litigation which the agency is a party to concerning the subject No
matter of the proposed rule?

Does the proposed rule have an economic impact? No
If the proposed rule has an economic impact, the proposed rule is required to be

accompanied by a fiscal note prepared in accordance with subsection (f) of Section
41-22-23, Code of Alabama 1975.

Certification of Authorized Official

I certify that the attached proposed rule has been proposed in full compliance
with the requirements of Chapter 22, Title 41, Code of Alabama 1975, and that it
conforms to all applicable filing requirements of the Administrative Procedure
Division of the Legislative Services Agency.

Signature of certifying officer fgaﬁmm ) g D
Leah Missildine h

Date Thursday, September 18, 208BEP 19, 2025
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ALABAMA STATEWIDE NINE-ONE-ONE BOARD

NOTICE OF INTENDED ACTION

AGENCY NAME : Alabama Statewide Nine One One Board

585-X-4-.09 Additional Distributions To Emergency

Ho. & TT : Communication Districts From The Cost Recovery Fund

INTENDED ACTION: Amend

SUBSTANCE OF PROPOSED ACTION:
Amend rule to match recently enacted legislation.

TIME, PLACE AND MANNER OF PRESENTING VIEWS:

Public Hearing 9:00 AM, Office of the Alabama 911 Board, 1 Commerce Street, Suite
620, Montgomery, AL 36104

FINAL DATE FOR COMMENT AND COMPLETION OF NOTICE:
Wednesday, November 19, 2025

CONTACT PERSON AT AGENCY:

Leah Missildine, Executive
Director, leahfRal9llboard.com,
334-440-7911

Leah Missildine

Leah Missildine

(Signature of officer authorized
to promulgate and adopt
rules or his or her deputy)



585-X-4-.09 Additional Distributions To Emergency
Communication Districts From The Cost Recovery
Fund.

(1) The Board recognizes that it is of utmost importance that
each Emergency Communication District (ECD) wvalidly formed and
operating within the State of Alabama as of September 30, 2011,
at a minimum, be made whole, as contemplated by the passage of
Act 2012-293 and adoption of the statewide 911 charges heretofore
made.

(a) Purpose - This rule establishes the authorized uses of the
separate account funded by the statewide 911 charges remitted to
the Alabama 911 Board, specifically for carrier and Emergency
Communication District (ECD) services.

(b) Allocation of Funds

i. Primary Use of Funds - Except as otherwise provided in
Section 11-98-4.1(6), the Alabama 911 Board shall deposit each
month into a separate account—whether or not part of the 911 Fund
—an amount equal to the remaining balance of the statewide 911
charges remitted for that month. These funds shall be used
exclusively for:

. Costs related to administering a statewide 911 voice and
data system in compliance with FCC technological requirements and
Section 11-98-4.1(e) (8). Examples include: recurring network
charges for call delivery, periodic and/or recurring licenses for
user access to data maintenance platforms, NG911 GIS services,
language translation services, transitional costs from legacy to
NG911, etc.

. Payment of actual and direct costs incurred by CMRS
providers in complying with wireless E-911 service requirements
established by the FCC Order and any related FCC rules or
regulations. Eligible costs include, but are not limited to:
Designing, upgrading, purchasing, leasing, programming,
installing, testing, or maintaining necessary data, hardware, and
software for Phase II Enhanced 911. TIncremental costs of
operating Phase II Enhanced 911.

ii. Secondary Use of Funds - After fulfilling the obligations in
paragraph (a), any remaining funds may be allocated for the
following purposes:

4-.09-1



. Funding required training and certification of public safety
telecommunicators in 11- 98-4.1 (e) (9) and 11-98-16.

. Funding advisory services provided to ECDs by the Board
under 11-98-4.1.

. Funding a grant program for ECDs demonstrating financial
hardship.
. Equal distribution among ECDs, as determined by majority

vote of the Board.

(&) Fiscal Year-End Balance

The Board establishes the maximum allowable balance to be carried
over in the Carrier and ECD Services account at the conclusion of
each fiscal year as not to exceed one month’s baseline
distribution due to ECDs.

(2) In the event two or more ECDs have consolidated during the
preceding fiscal year or consolidated before a Board decision
regarding additional distributions to ECDs in November, then if a
distribution is made, the distribution that an ECD would have
received prior to consclidation shall be made to the
consolidated, surviving ECD.

Author: Leah Missildine

Statutory Authority: Code of Ala. 1975, §§11-98-1; 11-98-4.1;
11-98-5, 11-98-5.2, 11-98-6, as amended.

History: New Rule: Filed May 16, 2018; effective June 30, 2018.
Amended: Published May 29, 2020, effective July 13, 2020.
Amended: Published November 27, 2024; effective January 11,
2025. BAmended: Published ; effective s
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Control:

Department or Agency:

Rule No.:

Rule Title:

Intended Action

TRANSMITTAL SHEET FOR NOTICE

OF INTENDED ACTION

585

Alabama Statewide Nine-One-One Board

585-X-5-.02

Certification Program Requirements

Amend

Would the absence of the proposed rule significantly harm or

; No
endanger the public health, welfare, or safety?
Is there a reasonable relationship between the state’s police No
power and the protection of the public health, safety, or welfare?
Is there another, less restrictive method of regulation available No
that could adequately protect the public?
Does the proposed rule have the effect of directly or indirectly No
increasing the costs of any goods or services involved?
To what degree?: N/A
Is the increase in cost more harmful to the public than the harm NA

that might result from the absence of the proposed rule?

Are all facets of the rule-making process designed solely for the
purpose of, and so they have, as their primary effect, the Yes
protection of the public?

Does the proposed action relate to or affect in any manner any
litigation which the agency is a party to concerning the subject No
matter of the proposed rule?

Does the proposed rule have an economic impact? No
If the proposed rule has an economic impact, the proposed rule is required to be

accompanied by a fiscal note prepared in accordance with subsection (f) of Section
41-22-23, Code of Alabama 1975.

Certification of Authorized Official

I certify that the attached proposed rule has been proposed in full compliance
with the requirements of Chapter 22, Title 41, Code of Alabama 1975, and that it
conforms to all applicable filing requirements of the Administrative Procedure
Division of the Legislative Services Agency.

Leah MIssildine

Leah Missildine EC, D &
A0

Date Thursday, Septemb , 2023
SEP T

NCY
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Signature of certifying officer
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ALABAMA STATEWIDE NINE-ONE-ONE BOARD

NOTICE OF INTENDED ACTION

AGENCY NAME : Alabama Statewide Nine One One Board
RULE NO. & TITLE: 585-X-5-.02 Certification Program Requirements
INTENDED ACTION: Amend

SUBSTANCE OF PROPOSED ACTION:

Amendment of rule to make non-compliance penalties less financially burdensome on

emergency communication districts.

TIME, PLACE AND MANNER OF PRESENTING VIEWS:

Public Hearing 9:00 AM, Office of the Alabama 911 Board,
620, Montgomery, AL 36104

FINAL DATE FOR COMMENT AND COMPLETION OF NOTICE:
Wednesday, November 19, 2025

CONTACT PERSON AT AGENCY:

Leah Missildine, Executive
Director, leahfRal9llboard.com,
334-440-7911

1 Commerce Street, Suite

Leah Missildine

Leah Missildine

(Signature of officer authorized
to promulgate and adopt
rules or his or her deputy)



585-X-5-.02 Certification Program Requirements.

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

Administration Requirements.

(a) These rules identify the minimum standards and
performance reguirements necessary or applicable to the
respective certification.

(b) The purpose of these rules and standards is to specify
the minimum requirements for a certification approved by the
Board. It is not the intent of these rules and standards to
restrict any jurisdiction from exceeding these requirements.

(c) All certification requirements shall be performed safely,
promptly, securely, competently, and in its entirety.

General Requirements.

(a) Coursework shall be delivered by in-person instruction,
virtually, or any other method as may be approved by the
Board from time-to-time.

(b) In-person courses may have a minimum initial enrollment
set by the Board.

Enrollment Requirements.

(a) Prior to enrolling in a certification course, the Trainee
shall meet the Enrollment Requirements as adopted by the
affiliated agency or the Board.

(b) The Board reserves the right to reject any application or
reapplication of persons who do not meet the requirements of
the Board.

Instructor Requirements.

(a) Coursework must be taught by an instructor who has been
certified or approved by the Board as an Instructor.

(b) An Instructor Application shall be created and amended
from time to time by the Board based upon minimum standards
as set forth in the Application.

(c) In order to be considered for approval, an applicant must
first submit a fully completed Application and resume' to the
Executive Director.

Testing and Proficiency Requirements.

5-.02-1



(a) Course Assessments. Course assessments as approved by the
Board shall be administered to the Trainee at the end of each
subject area of the coursework. The Trainee must achieve a
minimum of 70% on each end-of-subject assessment.

(b) Certification Examinations.

1. Certification examinations will be administered in a
method approved by the Board from time to time.

2. An overall score of 70% is required for the successful
completion of these examinations unless otherwise allowed
by these Rules.

3. Re-test may be taken up to two times in a 1Z2-month
period from the date of the original examination failure
and within 12 months of course completion.

(6) Reciprocity Requirements. An individual who holds a wvalid
certificate issued by another state, the District of Columbia, a
U.S. Territory, or any other 911 entity as recognized by the
Board may seek certification from the Board.

(7) Participation Requirements.

(a) It shall be the responsibility of the District having

jurisdiction over primary PSAPs to ensure compliance with
these rules.

(b) Continuing Education Units (CEUs) shall be mandatory to
maintain certification.

(8) Penalties.

(a) Penalties shall be imposed for Districts that are
noncompliant and notice of noncompliance shall be provided to
the District by the Board. Upon notice of noncompliance, the
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4&r (b) For good ecause shown, the Board reserves the right to
waive any requirement imposed by these rules.
Author: Leah Missildine/Alabama 911 Board
Statutory Authority: Code of Ala. 1975, §511-98-4.1.
History: New Rule: Published August 31, 2022; effective October
15, 2022. BAmended: Published July 31, 2023; effective September
14, 2023. Amended: Published November 27, 2024; effective
January 11, 2025. Amended: Published ; effective
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ALABAMA O] BOARD

Administrative Rules Public Comments

Submitter's Name Email Address: Phone Number
James Brown james.brown@coffeecounty.us 334-470-0207

Organization you are submitting on behalf of:
Coffee County ECD

Which rule are you commenting on?
585-X-4-.09 v’ 585-X-5-.02-8
You can review the rules by clicking the links below.

585-x-4-.09 -- https://admincode.legislature.state.al.us/api/filing/68cca4fe86d4af92a344d366/filing
585-x-5-.02 -- https://admincode.legislature.state.al.us/api/filing/68cca01e1636d446b73d7149/filing

Comments:

These changes give the State Board more flexibility in assigning penalties to non-complaint ECD’s but by striking out paragraph 8, (b) it makes
these penalties permanent and non-refundable even after the ECD comes back into compliance. This gives too much power to the Board to
determine the amount and or rate of penalty imposed on an ECD. If adopted it changes an established penalty rate to just say; “ District's failure to
return to compliance will result in some of the District's funding eligibility being forfeited.” How much is “some”? First, there should be a way to
recover these funds if the ECD comes back into compliance or is working on the compliance issue(s). Second, an established penalty amount
based on the time the infraction has lasted can be revised but should be clearly laid out as is already established in this rule.

You may upload your comments here:

EXHIBIT
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ALABAMA O] BOARD

Administrative Rules Public Comments

Submitter's Name Email Address: Phone Number
Johnny Hart jhart@marshall911.com 256-302-4265

Organization you are submitting on behalf of:
Marshall county 911

Which rule are you commenting on?
v 585-X-4-.09 v 585-X-5-.02-8

You can review the rules by clicking the links below.
585-x-4-.09 -- https://admincode.legislature.state.al.us/api/filing/68cca4fe86d4af92a344d366/filing
585-x-5-.02 -- https://admincode.legislature.state.al.us/api/filing/68cca01e1636d446b73d7149/filing

Comments:

Support for Amendments to Rule 585-X-4-.09

| support the proposed amendments to Rule 585-X-4-.09, “Additional Distributions to Emergency Communication Districts from the Cost
Recovery Fund.” These changes are important for maintaining effective and sustainable emergency communication services across Alabama.
The amendments align with recent changes to legislation and provide a clear framework for distributing funds to Emergency Communication
Districts (ECDs). By prioritizing essential services like NG911 GIS, language translation, and legacy system transitions, the rule supports FCC
compliance and improves emergency response efficiency.

Secondary uses—such as training, advisory services, and financial aid for struggling ECDs—further strengthen public safety infrastructure. | also
appreciate the provisions for managing year-end balances and supporting consolidated ECDs, which show thoughtful financial planning.
Overall, these updates are a positive step toward enhancing emergency communications and public safety in Alabama.

Support for Amendments to Rule 585-X-5-.02

I'm writing to support the proposed changes to Rule 585-X-5-.02, “Certification Program Requirements.” These updates show a thoughtful effort to
improve the certification process while easing financial pressure on emergency communication districts. However, there must be some penalty
levied by the Board on non-compliant ECDs, so that those performing the job of public safety telecommunicator meet a minimum standard of
certification, training, and performance to protect public safety and improve emergency communication services.

You may upload your comments here:



ALABAMA O] BOARD

Administrative Rules Public Comments

Submitter's Name Email Address: Phone Number
Jack Busby director@wcal911.com (251) 847-2911

Organization you are submitting on behalf of:
Washington County E-911

Which rule are you commenting on?
v 585-X-4-.09 v 585-X-5-.02-8

You can review the rules by clicking the links below.
585-x-4-.09 -- https://admincode.legislature.state.al.us/api/filing/68cca4fe86d4af92a344d366/filing
585-x-5-.02 -- https://admincode.legislature.state.al.us/api/filing/68cca01e1636d446b73d7149/filing

Comments:

We support the Boards proposed changes to the rules listed.

You may upload your comments here:
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